Public Document Pack

RIGHTS OF WAY COMMITTEE AGENDA
Monday, 19 July 2021 at 4.30 pm in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre
From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey
Item
Business
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Constitution of the Committee (Pages 3 - 4)
Report of the Chief Executive

3

Minutes (Pages 5 - 6)
The committee is asked to approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on 22
March 2021.

4

Proposed Diversion of part of Footpath Ryton 62/2 at Bradley Farm (Pages 7
- 14)
Report of the Strategic Director, Development Transport and Public Protection

5

Application for a Definitive Map Modification Order to Claim a Bridleway
from Barlow Lane, Greenside to Barlow Lane, Barllow (Pages 15 - 52)
Report of the Strategic Director Legal and Corporate Services

6

Progress on Rights of Way Matters (Pages 53 - 56)
Report of the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance and the Strategic
Director, Communities and Environment

Contact: Sonia Stewart, email: soniastewart@gateshead.gov.uk , Tel: 0191 433 3045,
Date: Monday, 12 July 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
RIGHTS OF WAY COMMITTEE
19 July 2021

TITLE OF REPORT:

Constitution

REPORT OF:

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive

Purpose
The constitution of the Committee and the appointment of the Chair and Vice Chair as
approved by Council for the 2021/2022 municipal year is as follows:Chair
Vice Chair

Councillor K Wood
Councillor S Dickie

Councillors D Bradford
A Geddes
M Ord
J Simpson
A Wheeler

Recommendation
The Committee is asked to note the report

CONTACT: Sonia Stewart

Extension 3045

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
RIGHTS OF WAY COMMITTEE MEETING
Monday, 22 March 2021

PRESENT:

Councillor K Wood (Chair)
Councillor(s): S Dickie, A Geddes, M Ord, J Simpson and
A Wheeler

IN ATTENDANCE:

Councillor(s):

APOLOGIES:

Councillor(s): D Bradford

RW37

MINUTES
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2020 be
approved as a correct record.

RW38

APPLICATION FOR A DEFINITIVE MAP MODIFICATION ORDER TO UPGRADE
THE STATUS OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH RY/27 AND RY/21 TO BRIDLEWAY
The Committee received a report on an Application for a Definitive Map Modification
Order to upgrade the status of public footpath RY27 and RY21 to Bridleway.
RESOLVED -

RW39

(i)

That the making of a definitive map modification order to add
the claimed bridleway at Cushy Cow Lane, Ryton, Gateshead
on the current alignment of the footpath as show with a line from
point A to point B on the plan at the appendix to the minute onto
the Definitive Map and Statement of Public Rights of Way be
approved.

(ii)

That delegated authority be granted to the Strategic Director
of Corporate Services and Governance to undertake to consult
statutory consultees and make a definitive map and modification
order to upgrade the current footpaths to a bridleway at Cushy
Cow Lane as shown from point A to point B on the plan at the
appendix to the minute and if no objections are received to
confirm the order or if objections are received and not
subsequently withdrawn, to send the order to the Secretary of
State for confirmation as an opposed order.

PROGRESS ON RIGHTS OF WAY MATTERS
The Committee were provided with an update regarding Rights of Way matters. The

Page 5

Committee were advised that there has been no changes with regards to the legal
matters since the last Committee.
Work has been carried out across the Rights of Way Network to make
improvements/repairs to paths and bridleways including the following.
B6317,Main Street, Crawcrook - Ryton 65
Stargate Roundabout, A695 - Blaydon 83
‘Dilly Line’ Greenside - Ryton 103
A693, Watergate Bank, Whickham - Whickham 91
Keelman’s Way, Ryton.- Ryton 75
St Cuthbert’s Road, Marley Hill - Whickham 99
Wellington Road, Dunston.- Whickham 4
A695, Crawcrook - Ryton 49
Keelman’s Way, Clara Vale.- Ryton 75
Birkland Lane, Kibblesworth.- Lamesley 72
Barlow Lane, Greenside.- Ryton 103

The Committee were advised of the current situation at the Clara Vale / Keelmans
Way landslide, it was noted that despite warning notices and fencing people were
still using the path which is temporarily closed under a temporary traffic order. There
is concern that the path is quite dangerous especially for those with dogs or small
children. The path is not on land owned by the Council and there is a railway line to
the other side, discussions are ongoing with the landowners and stakeholders and
the situation will
be kept under review. The Committee will be updated on any new developments as
they arise.
RESOLVED - That the information presented be noted.

Chair……….………………..

Page 6

Agenda Item 4
Report for Rights of Way
Committee
19th July 2021

TITLE OF REPORT:

Proposed diversion of part of Footpath Ryton
62/2, at Bradley Farm.

REPORT OF:

Strategic Director, Development, Transport and
Public Protection

Summary
This report relates to the proposed diversion of part of Footpath Ryton 62/2 at
Bradley Farm, Crawcrook, Gateshead.

Purpose of the report
1)

To seek authority from the Rights of Way Committee for the making of
a public path diversion order for the diversion of part of Footpath Ryton
62/2, at Bradley Farm, Crawcrook, Gateshead.

Background
2)

The existing line of Footpath Ryton 62/2 is indicated with a bold line
marked from Point A to Point C on the plan attached at Appendix 2 to
this report.

3)

The section of Footpath Ryton 62 proposed to be diverted is indicated
with a bold line marked from Point A to Point C on the plan attached at
Appendix 2 to this report.

4)

The Council, in its capacity as Local Highway Authority, is requesting
approval for the part diversion of Footpath Ryton 62/2 on to a new
alignment to the east of the existing footpath. The proposed route of
the diversion is indicated by a broken line from Point A to Point B to
Point C on the plan attached at Appendix 2 to this report. The
application for the diversion has been made by the landowner.

The Proposed Route of the Diversion
5)

From Point A to Point C, shown on the plan attached at Appendix 2 to
this report shows the existing line of Footpath 62/2 running in a north
westerly direction for a total distance of approximately 80 metres.
From Point A on the plan attached at Appendix 2 to this report, the
proposed diverted route, shown with a broken line, would proceed for a
short distance in a northerly direction to Point B, then in a westerly

Page 7

direction for a total distance of approximately 112 metres to re-join the
original path at Point C, shown on the plan attached at Appendix 2 to
this report.
6)

The section of Footpath Ryton 62/2 proposed to be diverted around the
field edge to allow for fencing to be erected and allow the grazing of
livestock. The diverted path is equally as commodious as the original
path.

Land Ownership
7)

The current alignment of the route from Point A to Point C shown on
the plan at Appendix 2 to this report; runs wholly across land in the
ownership of applicant Mark Tinnion. The proposed diversion of the
route from Point A to Point B to Point C would also be solely across
land owned by Mark Tinnion.

The Law
8)

Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 provides for the making of a
public path diversion order where it appears to the highway authority
that:
“In the interests of the owner, lessee or occupier of land crossed by the
path or way, or of the public, it is expedient that the line of the path or
way, or part of that line, should be diverted (whether onto land of the
same or of another owner, lessee or occupier), the council may, by
order made by them:
a) create, as from such date as may be specified in the order, any such
new footpath as appears to the council requisite for effecting the
diversion, and;
b) extinguish the public right of way over so much of the path or way as
appears to the council requisite.”

9)

The proposed diverted route should not be substantially less
convenient to the public and in the case of Footpath Ryton 62/2 at
Bradley Farm, it is considered to be expedient in the interests of the
landowner to protect livestock from footpath users and their dogs.

10) Section 119(2)(b) Highways Act 1980 provides that a public path
diversion order shall not alter a point of termination of the path or way
(where it is on a highway) otherwise than to another point which is on
the same highway, or a highway connected with it, and which is
substantially as convenient to the public. The termination point of
Footpath Ryton 62/2 will not be altered and it is considered to be
substantially as convenient to the public.
11) Where a public path diversion order is being made at the request of a
landowner or occupier of land crossed by the path, the Council can
require them under section 119(5) of the Highways Act 1980, to enter

Page 8

into an agreement to defray or make contributions towards any
compensation payable under Section 28 of the Highways Act 1980
below, or to the cost of the works to implement the diversion. The local
authority can also request a landowner who has applied for a diversion
order to contribute or pay for the cost of processing the diversion order.
12) Section 28 of the Highways Act 1980 does provide for the Council to
pay compensation where it is shown that the value of an interest in the
land has depreciated or a person has suffered damage by being
disturbed in their enjoyment of the land. An “interest” for the purposes
of Section 28 of the Highways Act 1980, includes any estate in land or
right over the land, whether that is exercisable by ownership, licence or
agreement. In relation to the part diversion of Footpath Ryton 62/2,
there are no other interests in the land that the proposed part diversion
will affect, other than the landowner’s. Furthermore, the landowner
consents to the proposed part diversion of the path and has other
public rights of way running across their land.
Therefore the
landowner’s enjoyment of the land is unlikely to be disturbed by the
proposed diversion in order to bring a claim under Section 28 of the
Highways Act 1980.
Consultation

13) No consultation has taken place for this proposed diversion.

Conclusion
14) In accordance with Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 it is within
the Council’s discretion to make an order if it appears to the Council to
be expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner,
lessee or occupier of the land crossed by the path. It is considered that
the proposed diversion is in the interests of the owner.
Recommendation
15) The Rights of Way Committee approves:
i) That a public path diversion order be made to divert part of Footpath
Ryton 62/2 from Point A to Point C as shown with a bold line on the
plan attached at Appendix 2 to this report, to the new alignment from
Point A to Point C as shown with a broken line on the plan attached
at Appendix 2 to this report.
Grant delegated authority to the Strategic Director of Corporate Services
and Governance to undertake the following:
a)

To consult the statutory consultees and make a public path
diversion order to divert part of Footpath Ryton 62 from Point A to

Page 9

b)

Contact:

Point C as shown with a bold line on the plan attached at Appendix
2 to this report, to the new alignment from Point A to Point B to
Point C, as shown with a broken line on the plan attached at
Appendix 2 to this report.
If no objections are received, to confirm the order or if objections
are received and not subsequently withdrawn, to send the order to
the Secretary of State for determination as an opposed order.

Zoe Jones

Ext. 3094

Page 10

APPENDIX 1
1

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The costs of making and advertising the order will be covered by the
applicant.

2

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
None

3

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS
Officers from Legal and Corporate Services, in conjunction with the
Public Rights of Way Officer, will carry out the processing of the order.

4

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
None

5

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
None

6

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
None

7

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
Under Article 8, everyone has the right to respect for his or her private
and family life and home.

8

WARD IMPLICATIONS
Crawcrook and Greenside

9

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
None

Contact:

Zoe Jones

Ext 3094

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

B

C

2
2/
/6
RY

Path (um)

Page 13

A

1
3/
/6
Y
R

.

Proposed Diversion Ryton 62/2
Current Alignment
Point A - C

Proposed Diversion
Point A-B-C

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council 100019132

Scale:

1:1,000

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Report for Rights of Way Committee
19th July 2021
TITLE OF REPORT:

Application for a Definitive Map Modification Order to claim a
bridleway from Barlow Lane, Greenside to Barlow Lane, Barlow.

REPORT OF:

Strategic Director, Legal and Corporate Services

________________________________________________________________________

Summary
This report to Committee sets out, summarises, and evaluates the evidence
gathered and submitted to the Council to determine whether there is sufficient
evidence to make a definitive map modification order to claim a public right of way on
the definitive map and statement.
___________________________________________________________________

1. Purpose of the report
To investigate an application and evidence for a definitive map modification
order as to whether bridleway rights exist over a track that runs from Barlow
Lane, Greenside to Barlow Road, Barlow.
2. Background
2.1

By virtue of Section 53(2)(b) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, the
Council is required to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous
review and make modification orders upon the discovery of evidence which
shows that the map and statement need to be modified in consequence of
events described in Section 53(3).

2.2 The relevant statutory provision which applies for a claimed bridleway to be
recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement on the basis of historical
documentary evidence, is Section 53(3)(c)(i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981. This requires the Council, as Surveying Authority, to modify the Definitive
Map and Statement following:
Section 53(c) the discovery by the authority of evidence which (when
considered with all other relevant evidence available to them) shows—
(i) that a right of way which is not shown in the map and statement subsists or
is reasonably alleged to subsist over land in the area to which the map relates,
being [ a right of way such that the land over which the right subsists is a public
path [, a restricted byway] or, subject to section 54A, a byway open to all traffic.

2.3 The main issue is whether the evidence is sufficient to show, on the balance of
probabilities, that the alleged route should be recorded as a public bridleway. The
definition of a bridleway under Section 66(1) is

Page 15

‘a highway over which the public have the following, but no other, rights of way,
that is to say, a right of way on foot and a right of way on horseback or leading
a horse, with or without a right to drive animals of any description along the
highway’.
2.4 All the relevant statutory provisions and competing rights and interests have
been considered in making this report. The recommendation is in accordance
with the law and proportionate having regard to individuals’ rights and the public
interest.
The Application
2.5 The Council received an application (set out at appendix 1) on the 20th February
2020 which was dated 20th February 2020 to claim a bridleway onto the
definitive map and statement of public rights of way. The applicant submitted
historical map evidence and no user evidence forms to support the claim. The
historical map evidence is set out at Appendix 3 to the report.

2.6 Following receipt of the application, the Council displayed notices along the
current public claimed route requesting any persons who use it on
horseback/as a bridleway to complete a user evidence form. The local user
groups were also contacted to determine if any of their members used the
claimed right of way and wanted to submit evidence. Following this, no user
evidence forms were received.
2.7 On investigating the claim, the Council in its capacity as Surveying Authority,
inspected documentary evidence and this is set out at paragraph 4 below.
2.8 In addition to the above investigations, the council put notices at the start and
end of the claimed route as well as at the junctions with Footpaths RY/14/1 and
RY/44/1 as this land is unregistered. The adjoining landowners of the claimed
route were sent landowner evidence forms to determine whether they
recognised the track as a bridleway or whether they had done anything to rebut
any presumption of dedication of the claimed right of way as a bridleway. An
objection was received from Cadent Gas which has been withdrawn following
further consultation.
3 Site Investigation
The route which is subject to the claim is indicated on the plan at Appendix 2
from point A to point B. It is approximately 660 metres in length and
commences at Point A, at the end of adopted highway and RY/110/1. A tarmac
track continues in a southerly direction. The track continues past a fingerpost
for Public Footpath RY/14/1 and the access into the old SUEZ landfill site which
is recorded as a permissive bridleway, RY/PE/29/1. The access point has a K
barrier, horse stile and a vehicle access gate. The surface changes to a stone
track at this point and cross over a small stream. The stone track then
continues in a southerly direction passing a finger post for RY/44/1 and ending
at Barlow Road, point B on the plan.

Page 16

4 Consideration of the Claim
4.1 ln determining the application, the committee must decide the following:
(a) if there is evidence to demonstrate, on the balance of probability, the
existence of a public bridleway from point A to point B, Barlow Lane, Greenside
to Barlow Road, Barlow. The burden of proving this falls to the applicant and
matters such as suitability of a way and possible nuisance or need are
irrelevant and cannot be taken into account when reaching a decision.
4.2 Documentary Evidence
The application was submitted with the following documentary evidence:
1) OS Map
The route, the continuation of Barlow Lane to Barlow Road, is shown with the
orange line added by applicant. OS maps show physical features on the ground
at the time of the survey.
2)

Definitive map
The route is not visible. Footpaths RY/110/1, RY 14/1 and BL/44/1 are shown.

3) Gateshead Adopted Highways map
The route highlighted in blue is a small section of adopted highway.
4) Find my street
Section highlighted in red shows the adopted section of Barlow Lane.
5) Local map-Gateshead cycle map
Highlighted in green.
Map Key -Traffic-free path.
6) Satellite view
The applicant has highlighted this route with a red line. The claimed route
follows the tree line.
7) Ryton Woodside Tithe 1943
The claimed route is shown as a solid lined track which is ‘labelled’ to Barlow,
Winlaton &c. The claimed route is also included in Plot 7 which is Burn Hills
Farm. Also shown as solid lined tracks are RY/14/1 and RY/110/1
Tithe maps are solely concerned with identifying titheable land. They were not
to establish or record rights of way. They are generally good evidence of the
topography of the roads they portray, especially those which form boundaries
of titheable land.
8) Winlaton Tithe 1839
The claimed route is shown as a solid lined track from Greenside numbered
417a. This is recorded as a lane running through this farm.
9) Greenwood 1820

Page 17

The claimed route is shown as a solid outlined track. Track to Reilly Mires Farm
shown as a dotted line.
10) Bell 1850
The claimed route is shown as a solid lined track.
3) a)OS V.4 1856-58
Shows the claimed route as a solid lined track numbered plot 1472.
Route connected by plot 732 and plot 733.
b)Book of reference
Plot 1472 recorded as a road.
Plots 732 and 733 recorded as Waggonway.
11) OS 6 inch Durham V 1862
Shows the claimed route as a continuous solid lined track.
12) OS 6 inch Durham V.NE 1898
Shows the claimed route as a continuous solid lined track.
13) OS 25 inch Durham V.4 1895
Shows the claimed route as a continuous solid lined track.
14) Bartholomew 1902 sheet 2
Shows the claimed route as a continuous solid lined track. Key provided states
that uncoloured roads are inferior and not to be recommended to cyclists.
15) 1910 Finance Act Plan Durham sheet V.4
Shows the route as a solid lined route. The route is not included in any parcels.
Under the 1910 Act, all land was required to be valued unless exempted.
Routes shown on the base plans which correspond with known public
highways, usually vehicular are not normally shown as included in the
hereditaments. Instead they are uncoloured and unnumbered. Landowners
were not obliged to claim reductions and many did not, lack of a deduction does
not mean no rights of way existed.
16) OS 1 inch 1961 sheet 78
The claimed route is shown by a solid lined route.
17) OS 25 inch V.4 1947
The claimed route is shown by a solid line.
18) Photographic evidence
These photos show the claimed route from Barlow Lane to Barlow Road.
4.3 In addition to the documentary evidence submitted in support by the Applicant,
the Council also carried out its own research and inspected the following
documentary evidence:
a) Definitive map-1965
Claimed route is shown in white and red dashes.

Page 18

Map key- Secondary road or narrow road with passing places.
RY/14, RY/110 and RY/PE/29 are not recorded as public rights of way.
b) Definitive map 1999-working copy
Claimed route is show as a solid lined route.
Conclusion of Documentary Evidence
4.4 After assessing the documentary evidence above, the cumulative evidence
suggests that historically a track existed over the claimed route. There is no
documentary evidence to indicate it was an occupation road. It can be
concluded that the claimed route is clearly shown as an established route with
the possibly that it is part of a local highway network. The weight attaching to
the evidence as a whole must be assessed. Historical evidence does not need
to be supported by public user evidence in order to demonstrate public rights.
Those rights could exist even though the landowners have not witnessed any
bicycle or equestrian use by the public.
Although the fact that the claimed route is shown on preordinance survey maps
is not evidence that it is or has been used by the public, it is more than likely
that it has been used for that time and recognised as a highway for it to be
shown on those maps. In light of the map evidence, officers would recommend
that there is sufficient evidence of the claimed route as a bridleway on the
balance of probabilities and therefore to make a definitive map modification
order to record a bridleway between points A and B.
4.5 Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006
Although the application is to record a bridleway, if when assessing the evidence
officers consider that highway rights may be present, then these would need to be
recorded. It is therefore necessary to consider the Natural Environment and Rural
Communities Act 2006 (‘NERC Act 2006’). The NERC Act 2006 significantly curtailed the
scope of recording further public rights of way for mechanically propelled vehicles (Byways
Open to All Traffic ‘BOATs’) on the definitive map and statement. Section 67 of the NERC
Act 2006 extinguished public motor vehicular rights over every highway that is not already
shown on the definitive map and statement or is shown as a footpath, bridleway or
restricted byway. There are, however, 5 exceptions:
•
The way had been lawfully used more by motor vehicles than other users
during the five years preceding commencement
•
The way was recorded on the ‘list of streets’ (kept under S.36 (6) of the
Highways Act 1980) as being maintainable at the public expense but is not recorded
on the DMS
•

The way was expressly created or constructed for motor vehicles

•
The way was created by the construction of a road intended to be used by
mechanically propelled vehicles

Page 19

•
The way had been in long use by mechanically propelled vehicles before
1930 (when it first became an offence to drive off road).
No evidence has been produced to show there is an exception that applies.
Recommendation
Officers recommend that approval is sought from The Public Rights of Way
Committee for the following:
1.

The making of a definitive map modification order to add the claimed bridleway
from Barlow Lane, Greenside to Barlow Road, Barlow as shown with a line from
point A to point B on the plan at Appendix 2 onto the Definitive Map and
Statement of Public Rights of Way.

2.

Grant delegated authority to the Strategic Director of Corporate Services and
Governance to undertake to consult statutory consultees and make a definitive
map and modification order to add the claimed bridleway at Barlow Lane,
Greenside to Barlow Road, Barlow as shown from point A to point B on the plan
at Appendix 2; and If no objections are received to confirm the order or if
objections are received and not subsequently withdrawn, to send the order to
the Secretary of State for confirmation as an opposed order.

Page 20

Appendix 1
1

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None

2

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS
None

3

STAFFING IMPLICATIONS
None

4

ACCOMMODATION IMPLICATIONS
None

5

CRIME & DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
None

6

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS
None

7

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
The applicable rights to be considered are the right to protection of
property, right to a fair trial and right to respect for private life. However
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and the Highways Act 1980
provides a legal basis for interference with these rights and the risk of
these rights being infringed is addressed via the fact that any orders
made are subject to an objection period and the statutory legal
process.

8

WARD IMPLICATIONS
Crawcrook and Greenside.
WInlaton and High Spen.

9

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
None

______________________________________________________________
Contact:
Umi Filby
Ext. 2219

Page 21

Appendix 2 – Plan of the claimed route
Appendix 3 – Map evidence

Page 22

RY/52/1

/1
RY

Road
Lead

RY
/9
7/
1
/3
29
PE
/
RY

0/1
/11
RY

9/1
E2
P
/
RY

/1
RY

4/1

Barlow Burn

Holy Well

/1
RY

/1
/47
BL

Page 23

2/2

E29/2
RY/P

7/2
/9
RY

A
RY
/1

3/2

RY
/1
3/
1

RY/103/1

2
03/

/1
RY

2/3

Iss

BL/4

Text
w
rl o
Ba

/1
/44
BL

.

Scale:

1:8,000

Definitive Map Modification Order-Proposed Bridleway.
Barlow Lane, Greenside to Barlow Road, Barlow Village.
Proposed bridleway A-B
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey Gateshead Council 100019132

43/1
BL/

B arlo

w Roa d

B

ne
La

8/1

This page is intentionally left blank

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
Application to modify the definitive map
Barlow Lane
1 OS map
The route is shown in orange. The yellow road from Greenside goes further on the OS
map than the adopted road recorded in the List of Streets for Gateshead.

Page 25

1

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

2 Definitive map https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/article/4473/Public-Rights-of-Way-and-TheDefinitive-Map-and-Statement

This shows a number of rights of way leading into the route, but it is not itself on the
definitive map

The bulk of the route is not on either the definitive map or list of streets, leaving 2
footpaths (RY/14/1 and BL/44/1) and one bridleway (RY/110/1) apparently with
nowhere to go.

Page 26

2

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

3 Adopted Highways https://www.gateshead.gov.uk/article/4473/Public-Rights-of-Way-and-TheDefinitive-Map-and-Statement

Gateshead Council (alongside Definitive map), just shows the short section leaving
Greenside as adopted.

4 Find my street
This has the part of Barlow Lane which is a yellow road on OS as publicly maintained,
not the rest of the route

Page 27

3

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

5 Local map
The route is shown as a traffic free path (green) on this Gateshead Cycle map, but it is
unclear on what legal footing, or what rights the public is deemed to have. It is not
accurate, mis-colouring BW RY/110/1 green as a “traffic free path” not brown as it
should be according to the key

Page 28

4

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

6 Satellite view apple maps
A track is visible right through to Barlow

Page 29

5

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

7 Ryton Woodside Tithe 1843 DRO D/CG 2/47
This shows the route under investigation as a through route labelled at the southerly
point where it joins onto Winlaton Tithe map, “to Barlow, Winlaton &c.” Plot 7 is Burn
Hills Farm.

Page 30

6

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

8 Winlaton Tithe 1839 DUL DDR/EA/TTH/1/258
Ryton Woodside and Winlaton Tithes abut, the route continues through, recognised as a
Lane in this apportionment, and as coming “from Greenside”

Page 31

7

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

The detail shows the route as “from Greenside”

Detail showing route as 417a, recorded as “Lane running through this farm” in
apportionment, clear evidence this was a through route.

Page 32

8

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

9 Greenwood 1820 http://valentine.dur.ac.uk/pip/searchform1.asp
The route is shown leading down from Greenside, with a branch off to Reilly Mires

10 Bell 1850 http://valentine.dur.ac.uk/pip/searchform1.asp
Again the road is clearly identifiable.

Page 33

9

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

11a OS V.4 1856-8 old maps
This shows the route as a continuous road, plot 1472 Road in Winlaton. In Ryton
Woodside it is joined by Burnhills Lane 733 Waggonway, is itself numbered 732 at
junction with this route and is joined by 630, Lane. Waggonways were sometimes run
alongside cart ways and were not mutually exclusive. (Early Railways 1569-1830, A Guy
and R Reeves, Shire Library 2011, p17)

Page 34

10

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

11b Ryton Book of reference DUL DHC 11/II/3/2
Winlaton
Note the area of public road in the recapitulation is equivalent to the roads named as
Roads, not public roads, no roads are called public road in this parish.

Ryton Woodside

Page 35

11

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

12 OS 6 inch Durham V 1862. NLS
Note the route is benchmarked, and shown as other roads in the area

Page 36

12

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

13 OS 6 inch Durham V.NE 1898 NLS
Again, it is clearly shown as a through route, benchmarked, and the Ford is labelled.

14 25 inch Durham V.4 1895 NLS
There is now a footbridge as well as the ford, the latter confirms horse use of the route.

Page 37

13

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

15 Bartholomew 1902 sheet 2 NLS
The route is clearly shown. Despite the disclaimer, the map was intended for the
travelling public and would not have included routes not though to be for public access.

Page 38

14

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

16 1910 Finance Act Plan Durham Sheet V.4 TNA IR 135 9/16
This shows the entire route as a white road, ie publicly owned and therefore a public
road (Bucks and Wadey Rights of Way, Restoring the Record 2nd edition p191-193)

Page 39

15

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

17 OS 1 inch 1961 sheet 78 NLS

Page 40

16

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

18 OS 25 inch V.4 1947 NLS
Still clearly shown, joined by Footpaths but not itself a footpath, confirming recognised
public access of higher status.

Page 41

17

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

Photographic evidence
The route was walked from Greenside to Barlow
The adopted part of the route is clearly named as Barlow Lane. It is signed as a cycle
way.

It is joined by RY/110/1 from the east, after which the route is question is not recorded
on either the definitive map or the list of streets. It becomes rougher but still very
suitable.

Page 42

18

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

There was evidence of recent use by horses along the track

RY/PE29/1 joins the route from the east, another well made track, after which the way
becomes a well made inviting old stony sunken lane.

Page 43

19

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

It crosses the stream with a well made bridge, and then becomes very muddy and
waterlogged. However the bottom is firm, and even in this very wet period (Feb 2020) it
is safely negotiable on foot or on horseback

It continues towards Barlow as a stony based sunken lane, joined by the footpath
BL/44/1.

Page 44

20

Barlow Lane DMMO Application

There is some old stonework holding up the bank of the sunken lane…

…..which continues up to Barlow to join the road.

Page 45

21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Report to Rights of Way Committee
19 July 2021
TITLE OF REPORT:

Progress of Rights of Way Matters

REPORT OF:

Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance and Strategic Director, Housing
Environment and Healthy Communities

Purpose of the Report
1.

To update Committee on the progress of Rights of Way cases, plus the
principle works carried out on the network between November 2020 and July
2021.

Background
2.

The rights of way matters and completed matters are set out in Appendix 2.

Recommendations
3.

It is recommended that the Committee note the report and the updates
highlighted in bold.

Contact: Umi Filby extension 2219 and Zoe Jones extension 3094

Page 53

APPENDIX 1
1.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Nil

2.

RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS
Nil

3.

HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS
Nil

4.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS
Nil

5.

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS
Nil

6.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Nil

7.

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS
Nil

8.

WARD IMPLICATIONS
Chopwell and Rowlands Gill, Blaydon, Ryton Crookhill and Stella, Whickham
North,Lamesley, Crawcrook and Greenside, Dunston Hill and Whickham
South and Sunniside, Winlaton and High Spen, Pelaw and Heworth South

9.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Nil

Page 54

APPENDIX 2
Current Matters
Item
No
1

Case

Ward

North View

Winlaton & High
Spen

Application/
Proposal
Definitive Map
Modification Order

2

Application to add a bridleway
between RB 44 and Derwent
Walk.
Claim at Thomas Street
Eighton Banks Right of Way
62

Whickham North,
Blaydon

Definitive Map
Modification Order

Lamesley

Definitive Map
Modification Order

Claim for a Footpath at
Sherburn Towers, Rowlands
Gill

Rowlands Gill,
Blaydon

Definitive Map
Modification Order

5

Creation Agreement for
Footpath Ryton 120

Ryton

Public Path Creation
Agreement

6

Clarty Lane Upgrade public
footpath LA/33 to bridleway
Cushy Cow Lane Upgrade
public footpath RY/27 to
bridleway.

Lamesley

Definitive Map
Modification Order
Definitive Map
Modification Order

3

4

Page 55
7

8

Claim for a Bridleway at
Barlow Lane, Barlow.

9

Blackhall Mill to Chopwell
Upgrade public footpaths
BL/11/1, BL/19/1, BL/19/2 and
BL/19/3 to bridleway.
Blackhall Mill to Armondside
Upgrade public footpath
BL/28/1 to bridleway.
Claim for a Bridleway at
Horsegate, Chopwell.

10

11

Ryton
Crookhill
Stella
Crawcrook
Greenside
Winlaton
High Spen
Crawcrook
Greenside
Chopwell
Rowlands Gill

Progress/Action
The order has been made but objections have been received. The Order
will need to be sent to the Secretary of State for the Environment, Food
and Rural Affairs. This is being prepared to be submitted in due course.
The definitive map modification order has been drafted and waiting for
instruction to advertise it.
The order has been made but objections have been received. The
papers have been prepared and the Order will be sent to the Secretary of
State for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for confirmation in due
course.
th
An application was received on the 18 August 2015 to record a footpath
onto the definitive map and statement at Sherburn Towers, Rowlands Gill,
th
which was approved by committee on 18 March 2016. The order was
th
made on the 9 June 2016 and the objection period for that order expired
rd
on 3 August 2016. One objection was received to the order, which was
not withdrawn. The papers were sent to Secretary of State for the
th
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs on 18 December 2018. The public
Inquiry was withdrawn as the objector withdrew their objection. The
nd
decision from the Secretary of State was received on 22 January
2020. The order was confirmed and a copy of the Inspector’s
Decision is attached as an appendix to this report.
Committee approved the making of a public path creation agreement on
th
12 October 2012. The draft agreement was sent to the landowner’s
agent on the 31 October 2017 but they have indicated that they will not be
responding until opportunities for the land to the south of the development
site are considered.
th
Following committee on 18 November 2019, instructions are with
legal to progress making the order.
th
In progress, application was due to be brought to committee on the 16
November, but more time was requested by the BHS to gather more user
evidence.
th

Definitive Map
Modification Order

An application has been received on the 26 March 2020 to record a
Bridleway onto the definitive map and statement at Barlow Lane, Barlow.

Definitive Map
Modification Order

An application has been received on the 17 August 2020 to upgrade
public footpaths BL/11/1, BL/19/1, BL/19/2 and BL/19/3 to bridleway at
Blackhall Mill and Chopwell.

Chopwell
Rowlands Gill

Definitive Map
Modification Order

An application has been received on the 17th August 2020 to upgrade
public footpaths BL/28/1 to bridleway at Blackhall Mill.

Chopwell
Rowlands Gill

Definitive Map
Modification Order

An application has been received on the 17 August 2020 to record a
Bridleway onto the definitive map and statement at Horsegate, Chopwell.

th

th

Completed Matters
None
PRINCIPAL WORKS CARRIED OUT ON THE RIGHTS OF WAY NETWORK – March 2021 and July 2021
Lingey Lane, Felling 44

Horse stile replacement

April 2021

Revetment, Newburn Bridge ramp

Repair revetment

May 2021

Ryton Willows, Ryton 103

Replace revetment

June 2021

Bucks Nook Farm, Blaydon 2 and 4

Replace stiles

June 2021

Bill Quay, Felling 50

Birdsmouth fencing

June 2021

Path Head, Blaydon 97

Drainage

Page 56

April 2021

